
                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING JUNE 20, 2012    Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

WEDNESDAY JUNE 20, 2012  7:00 PM 
61750 CHOLLITA ROAD, JOSHUA TREE CALIFORNIA 92252 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

 1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

 3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 

 4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

 5. PUBLIC COMMENT: At this time, any member of the public may address the Board on matters within the 
Board’s jurisdiction that are not listed on the agenda. Please use the podium microphone. The Board may not 
discuss at length or take action on items not on the agenda.   
During either "Public Comment” Item, please use the podium microphone.  State your name and have your 
information prepared and be ready to provide your comments to the Board.  The District is interested and 
appreciates your comments.  A 3-minute time limit may be imposed.  Thank you. 
 

 
 
 
Pg   1-5 
Pg   6-7 
Pg  8-28 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR: Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine in nature and will be adopted in 
total by one action of the Board of Directors unless any Board Member or any individual or organization interested 
in one or more consent calendar items wishes to be heard. 

A. Approve Minutes of June 6, 2012 Regular Board Meeting 
B. Approve Minutes of June 13, 2012 Special Board Meeting 
C. May 2012 Check Audit Report 
D. Dissolve Board Ad Hoc GM Facilitated Performance Evaluation Committee 
E. Dissolve Board Ad Hoc CAC Committee 
F. Dissolve Board Ad Hoc Budget Committee 

 
Pg 29-40 7. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE WATER AVAILABILITY (STANDBY) CHARGE FOR 

FISCAL YEAR 2012/2013 
Recommend that the Board adopt Resolution 12-889, establishing water availability charges for 12/13 
and authorizing collection by San Bernardino County. 
 

Pg 41-43 8. UNITED STATES GEOLOGICAL SURVEY (USGS) STUDY CONTINUATION 
Recommend that the Board approve a “No Cost Extension” Joint Funding Agreement with USGS to 
complete the report of the groundwater recharge project and the Transport Solute Model septic study. 
 

Pg 44-55 9. AGREEMENT WITH PAY PRO ADMINISTRATORS TO ADMINISTER THE EMPLOYEE 
CAFETERIA PLAN – FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT 
Recommend that the Board authorize the agreement. 
 

PO Box 675 • 61750 Chollita Road • Joshua Tree CA  92252 
Phone (760) 366-8438 • Fax (760) 366-9528 • www.jbwd.com 

An Equal Opportunity Provider 

http://www.jbwd.com/


                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING JUNE 20, 2012    Page 2 of 2 
 

Pg 56-61 10. CONSIDER MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) WITH JT CHAMBER OF 
COMMERCE REGARDING WATER SUPPLY TO THE PROPOSED TURTLE ISLAND 
COMMERCIAL DEMONSTRATION GARDEN 
Recommend that the Board approve the MOU with the Joshua Tree Chamber and authorize the Board 
President to work with District legal counsel and the Chamber to fine-tune any details. 
 

Pg 62-64 11. CONSERVATION COORDINATOR REPORT  
District Conservation Coordinator Deborah Bollinger to report. 
 

 12. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
  A. PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE: Vice President Luckman and Director Long: Kathleen 

Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant to report 
B. AD HOC GENERAL MANAGER CONTRACT NEGOTIATION COMMITTEE: President 

Reynolds and Director Long: 
C. AD HOC STRATEGIC PLAN COMMITTEE:  Director Coate and Director Long 
D. AD HOC UTILITY SERVICES CONTRACT COMMITEEE: Director Coate and Director Long 
E. AD HOC RECHARGE COMMITTEE:  Director Long and Director Coate 
F. CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE: Jay St. Gaudens, Chair 
 

 13. PUBLIC COMMENT 
At this time, any member of the public may address the Board on matters within the Board’s jurisdiction that are not 
listed on the agenda. Please use the podium microphone.  The Board may not discuss at length or take action on 
items not on the agenda. 
 

 14. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
 

 15. DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT  
 

 16. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 17. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 
 

 18. CLOSED SESSION 
A. At this time the Board will go into closed session pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 in 

order for the Board to consult with and instruct the Board's Ad Hoc Negotiation Committee (Mike 
Reynolds and Bill Long), which is acting as the Board's designated representative and is charged 
with the responsibility of negotiating a new Employment Agreement with the District's General 
Manager.  

 

 19. ADJOURNMENT 
 

INFORMATION 
 
The public is invited to comment on any item on the agenda during discussion of that item. 
Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should telephone Joshua Basin Water 
District at (760) 366-8438, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related modification or 
accommodation. 
Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public 
inspection in the District’s office located at 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, California 92252 during normal business hours. 
 
 

This meeting is scheduled to be broadcast on Time Warner Cable Channel 10 on June 27 at 7:00 pm and July 4 at 7:00 pm. 
DVD recordings of Joshua Basin Water District Board meetings are available at the District office  

and at the Joshua Tree Library. 



 
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
Minutes of the 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 

June 6, 2012 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:     7:00 PM 

 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

  

3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: Frank Coate 
Bill Long 
Mickey Luckman 
Mike Reynolds 
Gary Wilson 
 

Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 

STAFF PRESENT: Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
Susan Greer, Assistant General Manager/Controller 
Keith Faul, GIS Coordinator 
Anne Roman, Accountant 
Marie Salsberry, Executive Secretary 
 

CONSULTANTS PRESENT: Gil Granito, District Counsel 
Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant 
 

GUESTS 7 
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
        MSC Luckman/Coate 5/0 to approve the agenda for the regular meeting of June 6, 2012. 
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT 

Karen Tracy of Joshua Tree commented on the definition of “bigot” and stated she opposes comments 
occasionally presented by the public here. 

Josh Canady of Fatty’s Fencing commented on the recharge project facility fencing specifications, 
stating that a cost savings could be realized by changing the requirements for the type of fencing.  

Jean (no last name given) commented opposing the recharge project.  
 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
MSC Luckman/Long 5/0 to approve the Minutes of the May 16, 2012 regular Board Meeting and 

special Citizens Advisory Committee Meeting; to approve the minutes of the May 16, 2012 special 
Board meeting; and to cancel the July 4 regular Board meeting and schedule a June 13 special 
Board meeting. 

 
7. FISCAL YEAR 2013 AND 2014 BUDGET RECOMMENDATIONS FROM CITIZENS 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
General Manager Joe Guzzetta reported that the chairperson of the Citizens Advisory Committee 

(CAC) was unable to attend this Board meeting; the general manager reported the following 
recommendations from the CAC regarding the proposed budget: 
• The entry for “Standby Income Prior” should be deleted from the budget since it is just an 

accounting entry and to balance to cash statements. 



 
 
 
• The employee and volunteer appreciation event should be budgeted for both years rather than 

just one year. 
• The CAC supports the signage improvements proposed for the Demonstration Garden and 

would support installing a canvass-type canopy since the District is not able to afford the more 
expensive shade structure originally designed by the landscape architect. 

• The CAC supports the reduction of staff proposed to streamline operations. 
• The CAC supports the reduced cost of the secondary water source for the Hi Desert Medical 

Center complex and the proposed funding for attendance of legal counsel at the Board 
meetings. 

GM Guzzetta reported that staff concurs with the CAC’s recommendation regarding the budget and 
that he had advised the CAC of one staff position that he is proposing to eliminate.  He noted that 
CAC Chairperson Jay St. Gaudens will typically make CAC meeting reports at the second Board 
meeting of each month. 

 
8. FISCAL YEAR 2013 AND 2014 BUDGET RECOMMENDATIONS FROM AD HOC BUDGET 

COMMITTEE 
Director Coate reported that he and President Reynolds (the Ad Hoc Board Budget Committee) 

attended the CAC meeting and concurred with the CAC recommendations. He reported that the Ad 
Hoc Board Budget Committee also met with District staff. President Reynolds reported that the Ad 
Hoc Board Budget Committee recommended a line item title for interpretive signage at the 
demonstration garden be changed to “Demonstration garden improvements”. 

 
9. FISCAL YEAR 2013 AND 2014 BUDGET 

General Manager Guzzetta reported noting this is a balanced two year budget; the operational budget 
is a rollover from previous with a three percent adjustment; reserve of one million dollars for 
emergencies is in place; a two million dollar opportunity reserve is in place but some of that is 
committed to the recharge project if needed.  

Jean (no last name given) commented opposing the possible use of emergency reserves for the 
recharge project. 

Director Wilson proposed fifteen percent reduction to the budget and proposed several specific 
reductions to or deletions of budgeted items and measures to be taken to reduce spending. Director 
Coate stated he approved of budget as it is ready to be presented. Director Long stated he was not 
in favor of putting the District in a weakened position and he was in favor of the budget. Vice 
President Luckman commented in favor of the budget with recommended changes. President 
Reynolds thanked the CAC for their work on reviewing the budget, stating he was pleased with the 
budget and the recommendations. 

MSC Luckman/Long 4/1 to approve the budget with the recommended changes. 
   Coate  Aye 
   Long  Aye 
   Luckman Aye  
   Reynolds Aye 
   Wilson  No 

 
 
 

 
 
 



 
 
10. 

 
 
AWARD CONTRACT FOR DISTRICT AUDIT SERVICES 
Assistant General Manager/Controller Greer reported that five bids were received; she explained the 

process that staff used to rank the bidders on technical aspects and on costs, reviewed the results of 
the rankings. Board discussion ensued. 

Al Marquez of Joshua Tree commented in favor of changing to an independent auditor. 
AGM/Controller Greer clarified that all of the bidders are independent auditors; it is a requirement 
of the profession. President Reynolds stated that there is no conflict with any of these auditors. 

MSC Long/Coate 5/0 to award the contract for District audit services to Charles Z. Fedak. 
 

11. APPOINTMENTS TO CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
General Manager Guzzetta reported that no applications had been submitted. 
MSC Luckman/Long 5/0 to table the item. 
 

12. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 A. PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE: Vice President Luckman and Director Long; Kathleen 

Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant reported the District website is being upgraded. The annual 
Consumer Confidence Report will be available at the Farmers Market in June; the theme will be 
“Health on Tap”. A drip irrigation seminar will be offered in August. 

B. AD HOC GENERAL MANAGER CONTRACT NEGOTIATION COMMITTEE: President 
Reynolds and Director Long: No report. 

C. AD HOC STRATEGIC PLAN COMMITTEE: Director Coate and Director Long:  Director Coate 
reported the committee reviewed a draft plan. 

D. AD HOC UTILITY SERVICES CONTRACT COMMITTEE:  Director Coate and Director Long: 
Director Long reported the committee has a lot of material to review and this is in process. 

E. AD HOC RECHARGE COMMITTEE: Director Long and Director Coate: Director Coate reported 
that the committee met with the general manager and is hoping that the project will be out to bid by 
the end of this week. The general manager reported project is being advertised and proposals are 
expected to be received in about four weeks. 

F. CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE: Jay St. Gaudens, Chair: No report 
 

General Manager Guzzetta reported that the District has been notified that it will receive grant funds 
when all documentation is completed. The award has officially been committed but funds are not 
given in advance. 

Director Wilson asked if the newsletter stating the District had grant money is false; GM Guzzetta 
answered it was not false; that the District has the commitment of the grants.  
 

13. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Al Marquez of Joshua Tree commented stating that grant funding has not been received by the 

District.  
Jean (no last name given) commented opposing the recharge project. 
 

14. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
GM Guzzetta reported that pieces of surplus pipe will be donated to the JT Clean Team who will use 

them to make ashtrays to put at local businesses; unless an agenda item is requested by Board he 
will donate the surplus pipe.  



 
 
 
 
He reported that at next Wednesday’s special meeting a presentation is planned explaining the project 

that is going out to bid; he will ask the engineers to specifically address issues brought up related to 
the fencing project. 

He stated the agreement with MWA goes to 2022 and exceeds agreements of other agencies such as 
those in the Victorville area. He noted that the water to be delivered to Joshua Tree is slightly 
higher than Joshua Basin water at certain times of the year in salts, and much better quality than 
water from the Colorado River; it is the best quality water available. 

 
15. DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT 

Gil reported on litigation where the District prevailed at trial court in requiring the installation of 
meters on pumping. An appeal was filed and today Mr. Granito received a notice from the court of 
appeals indicating that no further extensions will be allowed.  

 
16. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

None requested. 
 

17. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 
Director Wilson stated this is a special day today because of the freedoms we have, referring to the 

sacrifices of heroic men on D-Day, 60 years ago. He stated it will cost eight hundred thousand to a 
million dollars a year for water. 

Director Coate reported attending the Mojave Water Agency (MWA) Board meeting where that 
agency’s budget was approved. He stated that the Ames/Reche project will store water for use by 
Bighorn, Pioneertown and Yucca Valley.  The Regional Water Quality Control Board will not 
merge with  LaHontan but will stay local in the low desert. He commented that the District would 
be remiss to not bring water in to recharge; he applauded the Board and District for doing this after 
the community has invested money for years to this end. 

Director Long stated only water that is requested will be paid for so there is no way to predict the cost; 
The District is looking forward fifty to a hundred years. 

Vice President Luckman stated she believes that water will be available for much longer than eight 
years; she thanked the executive secretary for adding the board meeting broadcast dates and 
availability of DVD recordings to the agendas. 

President Reynolds reported attending the MWA meeting noting that approval of the Ames/Reche 
project was good news. He thanked the public for their comments and proposed a forum to create 
an educational environment that would answer any questions on projects or other concerns.  

 
18. 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
A. Closed session pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 to consult with and instruct the Board's Ad 

Hoc Negotiation Committee (Mike Reynolds and Bill Long), which is acting as the Board's designated 
representative and is charged with the responsibility of negotiating a new Employment Agreement with the 
District's General Manager. 

B. Closed Session pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 to consult with the District's General 
Manager and General Counsel concerning the release of an employee due to the elimination of a position 
attributable to a Reduction in Force/Reorganization. 

Closed session began at 8:10 pm and the meeting resumed in open session at 9:03 pm. 



 
 
General Counsel, reported that the Board went into closed session at approximately 8:10PM for the 

matters reflected as Items 18 A and B of tonight's agenda. 
General Counsel reported that Mr. Guzzetta did not participate in the first phase of the closed session 

which concerned item 18. A and that during this phase of the closed session, the Board Ad Hoc 
Negotiating Committee consulted with the Board and no further reportable action was taken. 

General Counsel reported that Mr. Guzzetta joined the closed session when item 18. B was discussed. 
During this phase of the closed session the Board on a 4 to 1 vote [Directors Reynolds, Long, 
Luckman & Coate voting in favor and Director Wilson not in favor) authorized the General 
Manager to enter into a Separation Agreement with the affected employee. 

The Closed Session ended at approximately 9:00PM and shortly thereafter, the open session resumed. 
 

19. ADJOURNMENT    
 The meeting was adjourned at 9:06 pm. 
 

 Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
The next regular meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for June 20, 2012 at 7:00 pm. 

 

 



 
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
Minutes of the 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
June 13, 2012 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER:     7:00 PM 

 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

  

3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: Frank Coate 
Bill Long 
Mickey Luckman 
Mike Reynolds 
Gary Wilson 
 

Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 

STAFF PRESENT: Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
Susan Greer, Assistant General Manager/Controller 
Marie Salsberry, Executive Secretary 
 

CONSULTANTS PRESENT: Gil Granito, District Counsel 
Mike Metts, Engineer 
Mark Messersmith, Engineer 
Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant 
 

GUESTS 7 
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
        MSC Long/Luckman 5/0 to approve the agenda for the special meeting of June 13, 2012. 
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT 

Jim Ventura, Joshua Tree resident and representative of Division 2 of Mojave Water Agency 
commented on the importance of the recharge project to the community. He noted the importance 
of regional projects such as the Ames/Reche project and stated that projects such as these are 
instrumental in bringing grant monies to our area. 

Josh Canady of Fatty’s Fence/Wonder Valley Fence commented on the fence specifications, te bid 
closing date and that having a contractor from out of the area do the recharge fence project creates 
additional cost.  

 

6. Director Coate reported that the Ad Hoc Board Recharge Committee, the general manager and the 
engineer met regarding this issue and determined a recommendation to accept the bid of Westbrook 
Fence Incorporated. Director Long expressed concern about liability in the future if the fencing 
specs were to be changed from the engineer’s specifications. Legal Counsel Gil Granito reported 
that there is no statute mandating these standards for fencing; however if an incident was to occur 
resulting in an injury it would be relevant in a court of law; if the District deviated from the green 
book “standard specifications for public works construction” an argument might be present for 
liability. 

Discussion ensued.  
MSC Reynolds/Wilson 2/3 to reject all bids and re-advertise the project locally and contact local 

contractors. The motion failed with the following vote: 
   Coate  No 



   Long  No 
   Luckman No  
   Reynolds Aye 
   Wilson  Aye 
 
MSC Coate/Long 4/1 to accept the bid of Westbrook Fence Incorporated in the amount of $112,564 to 

install fencing for the recharge site. 
  

7. GM Guzzetta noted the groundwater recharge project is out to bid; he introduced Mike Metts of 
Dudek and Mark Messersmith of Krieger and Stewart who presented information on studies and 
other preparation for construction of the project and the project design.  

 
8. ADJOURNMENT    

The meeting was adjourned at 8:12 pm. 
 

 Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
 
Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
The next regular meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for June 20, 2012 at 7:00 pm. 

 

 





































































JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
SUPPLEMENTAL DATA SHEET 

 
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors       June 20, 2012  
 
 
Report to: President and Members of the Board 
From:  Joe Guzzetta, General Manager  
 
TOPIC: UNITED STATES GEOLOGICAL SURVEY (USGS) STUDY 

CONTINUATION 
 

RECOMMENDATION: That the Board approve a “No Cost Extension” Joint Funding 
Agreement with USGS to complete the report of the ground 
water recharge project and the Transport Solute Model septic 
study.   
 

ANALYSIS: All field work has been completed by USGS for the above two 
studies.  Originally, USGS expected to complete its reports in 
2010.  However, the final report has been delayed in part 
because the ground water recharge site took longer to select 
than expected, and in part because USGS is applying new 
USGS models to better simulate the transport of nitrates in the 
unsaturated and saturated zone in Joshua Tree.  This has been 
a greater technical challenge than expected.  USGS expects to 
have the report complete by the end of the calendar year. 
 
In acknowledgement of our partnership, USGS is willing to 
allocate an additional $22,800 to the project and no additional 
cost to Joshua Basin Water District. 
 
This work began In October, 2006 when the Board approved a 
cooperative study with USGS.  The federal budget process 
requires USGS to have a new contract each year in order to 
assure that federal funding for the USGS share.  The purpose 
of the study is to determine the residential density that can be 
supported by a standard septic system, and to study geological 
characteristics that would be important to know for a water 
recharge program, such as assuring that nitrates will not 
increase in the water that is pumped.   
 
Total cost for the study is about $1.3M over the past six years.  
The study was critical in being awarded the $3.2M in recent 
Proposition 84 funds.  Approval of this agreement will provide 
the best possible data to assure that waste water treatment is 
provided to protect the aquifer and that JBWD receives a 
complete report on the ground water recharge site. 

 
















































	SR USGS Study Continuation 6 20 12.pdf
	JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT




